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THE CITY OF POUGHKEEPSIE 

NEW YORK 
 

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

Monday, December 3, 2012 6:30 p.m.    City Hall                     
________________________________________________________________________ 

  

Chairwoman Johnson:  We concluded the public hearing regarding the Proposed 2012 Budget 

and we had another public hearing scheduled for the Waterfront Advisory Committee.  I’m going 

to go out of order.  This was supposed to be a part of my Chairwoman’s comments, but I’m 

going to go out of order.  Mayor Tkayzik.  December is the holiest of all months.  It is the month 

we celebrate the birth of Our Lord and Savior, Jesus Christ and Hannukah with the lighting of 

the Menorah.  On Friday, our beloved City of Poughkeepsie had our Annual Celebration of 

Lights Parade, which was the biggest, most spectacular parade to date.  Hundreds of families 

showed up as our amazing floats with sparkling Christmas lights adorned the evening night.  Our 

DPW tree crews did a fantastic job of decorating our two Christmas trees, and the other City 

trees that lined the streets as the parade passed by.  Even our Council Members were in a jolly 

mood, as they passed out candy to the cheering children in the crowd.  Then in our finale, we had 

our fireworks display, which lit the skies with a colorful array of starlights.  Yes, we had a great 

night to kick off the holiday season.  Christmas is a time of giving.  That is why our December 

Volunteer of the Month has to be someone very, very special. That person has to represent the 

meaning of the season.  Someone who exemplifies giving, generosity and a love of our 

community.  So it is with great pleasure that I announce Reverend Blake Ryder, from Christ 

Episcopal Church as our December Volunteer of the Month.  Reverend Ryder gives away from 

1,500 to 2,000 backpacks filled with school supplies every year in his Christmas in July event.  

They also had free food, rides and entertainment.  He runs a very successful Summer Camp 

Program each year, and allows the community and Clinton Elementary School to use the church 

playground every day, while others who have playgrounds with taxpaying dollars, worry about 

liabilities and have their playgrounds under lock and key.  Reverend Blake Ryder does the re-

entry program project, helping men that have served their time in jail, get help to transition back 

into society with Dutchess Collaborative. He also hosts many community meetings, always 

having an Open Door Policy to social and community issues, such as the AA group, BOCES, 

Occupy Poughkeepsie, Hudson Valley Bluegrass and the Mexican Folk Dancers, just to name a 

few.  He is the Chairman of Planned Parenthood and Past President of the Rotary Club.  So, it is 
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with great pleasure that I introduce to you, our December Volunteer of the Month, for 2012.  

Please join me in welcoming Reverend Blake Ryder.   

 

Mayor Tkazyik presented the award to Reverend Ryder.   

 

    I.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

        ROLL CALL 

 

  All Present 

 

II. REVIEW OF MINUTES:   

 

 

III. READING OF ITEMS by the City Chamberlain of any resolutions not listed on 

the printed agenda.  

 

ADD 

 

III. MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS: 

 

2. FROM CHAIRWOMAN JOHNSON, Resolution R12-83, setting a public 

hearing for proposed Local Law amending Chapter 9, Article V entitled “Garbage, 

Trash and Weeds”.  

IV. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  Three (3) minutes per person up to 45 minutes of 

public comment on any agenda and non-agenda items. 

 

Mallory Rest – On behalf of the Land Use Law Center and the leadership for the 

Land Use Alliance Training Program, we would like to present the Council with the 

updated Distressed Property Initiative. You will find it on your desk.  The report 

includes a cover letter, the report and letters of recommendation regarding the report.  

This report is for your review before the December 17
th

 council meeting.  At that 

point, the center staff will formally present the report to you and answer any 

questions that you may have.  If you have any questions prior to that point you may 

contact Jessica Basher at the Land Use Law Center.  I can provide you with her phone 

number now if you like (914) 422-4103.  If you would like to email her, her email is 

jbasher@law.pace.edu. 

 

Constantine Kazolias 47 Noxon Street- I went down to Irvington to celebrate a 

departed friend’s birthday.  Meantime down there along the riverfront is all park, just 

to let you know.  Whatever, John says about the river, he knows the river better than 

anyone.  First of all, the two percent cap is being thrown at us. As far as I am 

concerned, as Will Rogers says, “Figures don’t lie but liars figure.”  I think Molinaro 

is lying to us.  Anybody who says you have a $40 million gap, something’s wrong.  
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What he is trying to do is create chaos by cutting us to two percent.  Sales practices 

are up four percent.  We have all these PILOTs in the City.  You know what I think of 

PILOTs, they get us deeper and we don’t have any tax.  Pensions are incorporated 

into the municipal two percent not in the teacher’s two percent and that goes on to 

infinity.  They want to expand, expand, expand but they aren’t under the two percent 

cap.  Something is radically wrong.  You have to incorporate the garbage, like Bruce 

Dooris said.  I call Sanitation, the Poughkeepsie Minuteman.  Increase the cap, go 

over the cap until this thing gets resolved and settles down.  Put it on the taxes 

because a lot of people can use this as a tax write off.  I live in a single family house.  

I put a garbage bag out once a week.  When I see a single family house putting out 

three, four and five garbage cans, what are they doing?  Running a business out of 

there?   Let’s increase the cap.  You got the 60% vote to increase it.  Go over it and 

do what you have to do.  Find the money because you know the money is sitting 

somewhere.  Let’s get over the hump this year and let’s resolve our differences.  We 

don’t need the rat city here.  We’re nationwide in case you don’t know.  Let’s do 

what we have to.  Bury the hatchet and do something for the benefit of all the people 

instead of worrying about your political fannies. 

 

Ken Stickle 118 Catherine Street – The City has ways of making money.  I talked 

to the Corporate Counsel about a couple of trucks parking in my neighborhood 

overnight.  Go along Main Street and see the people parking over the white line.  Put 

a law into effect, if you park over the white line and take up two parking spaces you 

get a $50 parking ticket.  Parking over a fire hydrant, give a ticket for $100.  Parking 

fines stay in the City, they don’t go to the State like speeding tickets.   Taxi 

enforcement; I see cabs parked on the street again overnight.  I don’t know why they 

are being enforced.  If the cab is parked on the street, impound the cab.  Let them get 

the cab out of the City impound lot.  We’ve got to turn around.  I willing to pay the 

extra amount in my taxes because I am able to write it off on my income taxes.  

You’re not going to get the people that rent to pay $3.00 a bag.  One landlord says he 

is going pass that along to his tenant, I can’t help that.  The people I work for are 

going to have to do the same thing.  We cannot do without our sanitation department.  

There are too many things in this budget that could be cut but one thing we can’t do is 

lose these 16 guys that are being laid off.   We need the one person in the juvenile 

position; reinstate it.  We have a problem in this city, in case no one noticed.  We 

have a big problem with our youth in this city because there is nothing for them to do 

in the first place.  Now you are going to cut somebody out of the juvenile division? 

That makes a lot of sense.  We’re going to get rid of more of our mechanics up at the 

city works?  Where are you going to get the trucks and the cars fixed?  I see the 

police cars constantly being towed up Cottage Street hill.  I don’t know where any of 

this stuff came from but none of it makes any sense when it breaks down.  We keep 

outsourcing these jobs to another contractor.  It only costs the taxpayers more money.  

Let’s be fair.  Look into this budget.  Let’s start looking into some of these parking 

enforcement things.  Let’s start generating some more money.  Where is the City 

master plan for Main Street?  I asked about the City master plan over three years ago.  

We just had a big drug bust at Boost Mobile on Catharine and Main.  It is now re-
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opened under new management.  That’s great.  What do we have in the City?  

Haircutting places, beauty parlors, nail salons and cell phone places and bodegas.  We 

have no antique shops, nightclubs want to close long before people want to get out of 

there.  We need to do something.  What are we doing with Main Street?  So that 

people that do want to open up a business don’t have to come before the council and 

then wait three months to have it approved or disapproved.   

 

Steven Planck 81 Carroll Street – I urge the Common Council to answer this 

question seriously and to think along these lines.  We cannot continue to raise taxes 

forever; it’s illogical and doesn’t make any sense.   I think that what the Common 

Council and the Mayor need to do is to figure out what are the City’s inherent 

advantages and how do we exploit them.  What is it that we can do in our 

communities as well as you all that would attract people, that would attract businesses 

and people to the City of Poughkeepsie.  That’s my first thought.  My second thing 

that I would like to have heard and on record is that albeit I admit to being a very 

progressive thinker.  Some of the things that I come up probably will not sit well 

because the majority of us tend to take the path of least resistance rather than do what 

is right.  We tend to, as I have seen here tonight, to put the needs of a few in front of 

the needs of the many.  What I think that the City, the Mayor and the Common 

Council should seriously consider putting forth some type of voucher program.  It has 

been implemented in other cities.  I know from emails back and forth between some 

of you that you have looked at other municipalities.  I am not really interested in how 

they are working because I don’t think they work too well.  In the same breath, ours 

has problems.  We’re all here because we care and we are working toward something 

better than what we are today. As I digest that thought, one of the City’s greatest 

strengths is its people.  I think the majority of us sitting up there and also in our 

homes, tend to think them as a burden.  And I am specifically referring to the 

underprivileged people that receive some sort of social assistance.  I truly believe that 

instead of giving them food, shelter and whatever else they get in the form of social 

assistance, I think it should be put onto a voucher program.  Where if we’re having a 

problem finding the money to have someone pick up the leaves.  Assign someone to 

go out and do it in our community.  In exchange they receive a voucher for the 

shelter, food or clothes that they need.  If someone needs to go to our parks to pick up 

the garbage or remove the trash, assign someone to do it and in exchange they get a 

voucher to go somewhere to get the clothing or the shelter.  They put in so many 

hours per week or so many hours per month and I imagine that it would have to be on 

a pro-rated basis.  So if they put in their hours the month prior, it would credit to the 

next month.  A famous person, Jon Bon Jovi actually has a program which is called 

Soul Kitchen which is very, very, very prosperous.  Not in the sense that is making 

money but it is helping people gain integrity, pride.  I think that is something that we 

are trying to give people.  On the other end we are helping the community because 

the community is starving for revenue.  My belief is that instead of giving something 

away for free, create a voucher program which, in exchange for your service to your 

community, which is really why we are all here, we are also going to take care of you 
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in the ways that you need to be taken care of, whether it’s for food, clothing or 

shelter.   

 

Lee David Klein 32 Seaman Road - I thank the Council, the Mayor and City staff 

for working hard.  The City faces serious challenges.  I have noticed over the years, 

that on too many occasions individuals in this Council Chamber that are spoken to 

and treated with disrespect and discourtesy.  I would respectfully request that the 

Council maintain a sense of decorum and try to eliminate those kinds of things.  Mr. 

Kazolias referred to people not burying the hatchet in each other’s backs and I would 

support that.  I think it is unnecessary.  This is the people’s chamber.  We are all 

residents and temporary ones at that when it comes to this chamber.  I would ask that 

a sense of decorum and a sense of respect when it comes to fellow Council members, 

Mayor and City staff, guest presenters and members of the public be observed at all 

times, particularly in these hard times.  The City faces challenges that are not 

unfortunately, unique.  They are throughout New York State.  The entire state faces 

grave financial challenges.  The governor of the state has advised that there will be no 

more aid from the State Government to local municipalities.  And the people are 

entitled to orderly, business-like and professional meetings.  They are more critical 

than ever now that we are truly experiencing grave, grave challenges.  And there 

doesn’t appear to be a light at the end of the tunnel anytime soon.  So I repeat, Mr. 

Kazolias is correct, let’s keep the hatchets out of each other’s backs and work 

together.  I think we can all agree that is the most important thing at this point.  

 

Angelo Belmonte 41 Roosevelt Avenue – I am here for a couple of reasons.  On 

Roosevelt Avenue, we have a problem.  There has been a taxi cab company for the 

last three years that has been parking up to five cabs.  The tenants have no place to 

park when they don’t have a driveway and that person will not go away.  My wife 

almost twice got wiped out.  I come out of the driveway, the people come so fast 

around the corner.  My driveway is the first one on Roosevelt.  Roosevelt is one way.  

I tell these people, please park the van down further.  Nothing has been done.  

Another thing, the garbage situation.  I have been in Poughkeepsie since 1961.  It has 

always been a nice place and I hope that it stays that way.  The garbage pickup has 

been the most important thing in the City.  You see what happens when they pick up 

the garbage in New York City.  In Naples, Italy they have mounds and mounds of 

garbage.  See what happens when they don’t pick up?  They try to privatize.  The 

people from out of town, they don’t care about me, you and everybody else.  They 

come here when they have to get paid.  I think it’s a public work; they do such a 

tremendous job.  I would love to see them have a job for Christmas and all of next 

year.  If we have to pay more taxes, please do. I refuse to do so. 

 

Darryl Matthews North Bridge Street – I am developing a project on North Bridge 

Street.  I would like to address the body by first recognizing your responsibility and 

my familiarity with it.  Prior to coming to Dutchess County, I worked in government 

for twenty years.  So I know that anything that is going to be done here, you are going 

to be more than qualified to get it done.  However, I do have some observations.  At 
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the end of the Hudson River you have the Port Authority that generated $483 billion 

last year.  And at the top of the Hudson River you have the Port of Albany which is 

generating its billions of dollars.  I hear about the sanitation problem and because I 

worked in government as an aid to a mayor of a very large city, I know that in the 

Environmental Protection Agency they have several clean community grant 

programs.  Which brings me to my paramount issue and suggestion.  I think that 

because you have a citizenry that is so concerned that they actually attend Council 

meetings to articulate their viewpoint, the Council might want to enlist them by 

creating a revenue generating taskforce that one Councilmember, or a group of the 

Council would spearhead and ask the citizenry to participate in this revenue 

generating taskforce because you have different levels of professionalism that live in 

Poughkeepsie.  I bring that up because that is how we got to the sales tax in the first 

place.  When Dutchess County needed to find a way to raise its revenues when it was 

only charging one percent of sales tax, the County Executive at that time, created a 

revenue generating task force and they came up with the idea that the sales tax would 

be the best way to increase revenue without raising the property tax.  So twenty, thirty 

years later in the City of Poughkeepsie, you have all of these talented citizens, smart 

citizens and here’s the thing:  The Federal Government, in spite of all the ballyhoo 

about what it does not have, through all the electioneering of what the country did not 

have, people found a billion dollars to support candidates and one of them lost.  

That’s a billion dollars.  During the campaign you would think that people didn’t 

have 55 cents.  In the Federal Government, the city I worked for used this quite 

adroitly.  There is what is known as the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance and 

it outlines the billions of dollars on a monthly, seasonal basis where each department 

of government has grants and funding mechanisms, direct payments, loans, loan 

guarantees to finance projects.  Gone are the days when you can just say, I need this, I 

need that.  What citizens are compelled to do now are to design projects and programs 

to fit a specific need.  So your revenue generating taskforce would look at what the 

Federal Government has available through its Health and Human Services or 

Department of Labor or the Department of Agriculture.  Now this is really interesting.  

The Department of Agriculture has a $900 million a year budget this year.  The 

largest budget in the State of New York is in agriculture.  Yet when I read the City of 

Poughkeepsie’s grant request is was zero with the Department of Agriculture.  I am 

putting together a summer jobs program.  I am very concerned that the children of 

Poughkeepsie have some means of having a summer job. And I will be integrating 

that concept and I pray and trust to introduce it to you for your assistance. 

 

V. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 

 

Mayor Tkazyik – First I would like to thank everyone for a fabulous Celebration of 

Lights this past Friday in downtown Poughkeepsie.  It truly was a spectacular 

evening.  Big thanks to Chris Silva at the Bardavon and his staff along with Lou 

Stripley and Mike Reed and all the members of the River District Restaurant 

Association for coming together to make this a successful event.  Also, thanks goes 

out to our police officers, firefighters and of course the Department of Public Works 
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for all of their work in assisting this celebration so it could turn out to be so 

successful with huge crowds and everyone leaving with a smile on their face.  So 

thank you to all for making this such a great event.  More good news in relation to 

improvements that have begun at the Glebe House.  I have some pictures given to me 

by Engineering, in relation to the steps area and the railing and roof work that has 

begun when it has said to begun.  I wanted to pass that around to the Council 

members to see the progress that is going on.  Some may have seen this already.  

Commissioner DuPilka and the members of the Engineering Department are working 

thoroughly on that with the contractor so the matters can be resolved there.  Of 

course, the historic nature of the property can stay intact.  I appreciate all the 

comments and participation from the public and everyone coming to speak out for the 

City budget hearings.  It is great to see such public turnout during these tough 

economic times, where tough decisions have to be made. That’s exactly the situation.  

These are tough times, where tough decisions have to be made with the City facing a 

$4 Million budget shortfall having only to learn about half of it come August when 

we were informed by Dutchess County government that we would no longer be 

approximately $2 Million in sales tax. I appreciate the Council members working 

through the budget process.  However, reading through just slightly, very vague detail 

of the planned proposal that I have seen from the Council and the Union.  These 

numbers are just not realistic to support the function of sanitation services.  The 

proposal of $22 to a single family house just does not add up to support the cost of 

sanitation services.  The number would more likely be close to $36 to equal that cost 

to a single family home.  The plan does not thoroughly emphasize an implementation 

plan and strategy.  There are several exemption questions that call to mind exemption 

categories of people that would require more money to be made up in this overall 

shortfall in which I see looking at preliminary numbers to date.  I appreciate everyone 

coming and speaking and letting us made aware of what you want to see and hear 

about your city.  These are things that are very important to all of us.  Poughkeepsie 

will get through these tough times, as we always have in the past by collectively 

working together and that is exactly what we’re going to do moving forward in 

relation to solving the budget challenges that we all face.  Raising taxes is not the 

answer.  We see that with the many members who own homes and businesses that 

come across my office or the Assessor’s office or the Commissioner of Finance’s 

office, who can’t afford to pay the tax at two percent.  It would be unrealistic to force 

a large tax increase on the public which they’re simply not going to pay.  Many of 

you saw the tax lien sale properties posted in the paper just a week ago of all the 

amount of people who have unpaid property taxes and water and sewer bills.   You 

see the challenges our residents face and to think that a large increase or exceeding 

the cap is going to answer all the problems, we’re foolish to think that would be the 

reality.  Collectively, we will come together and collectively, we will solve the budget 

challenges that we face.  I appreciate all the emails, the calls and of course the public 

participation at these meetings.  It is great to see the involvement of the public.   

 

VI. CHAIRMAN’S COMMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
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Chairwoman Johnson- First, I would like to take a moment to give thanks and to 

give glory and praise to God for whom all things are made possible.  I would like to 

secondly thank my Majority Leader Nina Boyd and the Vice President of the CSEA 

Union Bruce Dooris.  Both of these people gave their blood, sweat and hard work in 

preparing and researching this proposed Common Council amended budget.  And I 

thank them for working together with me for over a month to accomplish this goal.  I 

would like to give special thanks to the Chief of Staff, Steve Gold for pointing us in 

the right direction.  I would be remiss if I didn’t thank my wonderful caucus for all 

their help in finding the additional cuts in preparation of these amendments.  I would 

like to thank Vice Chair Joe Rich, Councilmember Bob Mallory, Councilmember 

Mary Solomon and Councilmember Ann Perry for all their hard work and support. 

The proposed budget being presented by the Democratic Caucus is not only saving 

the jobs of our current employees, but is also re-instating back into the budget 17 

employees that the Mayor eliminated from his Preliminary 2013 Budget: 13 

sanitation, one youth worker, one police aide and two mechanics.  Based on the 

feedback that we heard from all our city residents, the public outcry from all eight 

wards received emails, phone calls, petitions and face-to-face conversations of 

discontentment was overwhelming.  They were all very unhappy with the lay-offs of 

our beloved sanitation workers.  We heard their desires to keep our sanitation 

department and to keep out twice a week pick up along with our leaf removal and 

other duties that our guys perform.  So through our exhausted efforts, countless days, 

traveling to other municipalities and in-depth research, we have decided to enact a 

local law establishing a Sanitation User Fee Service.  This concept is being used in 

other municipalities in the Mid-Hudson region, Newburgh, Schenectady.  Beacon is 

currently drafting this local law as we speak.  This new local law will not only create 

revenues to sustain and maintain our twice a week pick-up service but it will pay for 

all the operating expenses associated with the Sanitation Department in general.  

Please be patient with us while we are still in the process of finalizing this concept.  

We have to take a crash course in Sanitation and Finance without the luxury of a 

staff.  But our accountant has provided us with a budget analysis of the cost of the 

Sanitation use fees per household.  I think everyone has a copy of what the user fees 

are: single family homes $22 a month, two family homes $40, three family homes 

$60 and so forth and so on.  This is just a start.  That is why we have the public 

hearings so we can hear your input.  Keeping in mind that the second phase of this is 

recycling.  So in addition to saving our sanitation department our caucus has worked 

diligently to find cost savings measures within the Mayor’s Preliminary Budget to 

preserve the police officer’s positions, the mechanics positions which maintain our 

fleet.  In conclusion, the public is now being presented with three options.  The first 

option in the Mayor’s Preliminary Budget which was presented on October 15
th

 is the 

elimination of the Sanitation Department with 18 layoffs.  Ten days later, the Mayor 

proposed the pay as you throw concept.  I call it the $3.00 designer bag.  The problem 

with that is that I don’t know who is going to go down to 1.5 bags.  I know I throw 

out five bags a week and I don’t even cook.  So, in conclusion, I just really wish that 

we could start working together in bi-partisanship in a positive and pro-active manner 

in these hard economic times.  This budget crisis supersedes petty differences.  My 



Official Minutes of the Common Council Meeting of December 3, 2012 

 

 

wish is that the Legislative Branch and the Executive Branch of government can 

come together without negative criticism of each other.  But we can pull together to 

solve our financial woes.  Now I would like to give a re-cap of the 2012 volunteers of 

the month.  Even though we had our presentation, I would like to let you know who 

everybody was for the whole year.  In January we had Lula Mae Parker Harris.  

February we had Dominick Letteri.  In March we had Robert Mannino.  He used to be 

our video guy.  He would video all our meetings.  He’s ill now.  In April we had 

Juanita Belton.  In May we had Isabella Sciacca. In June we had Robert Thomas, Sr., 

Robert Thomas, Jr., and Mark Thomas.  In July we had Elizabeth “Betty” Chapland.  

In August we had Mr. Gottshall.  In September we had our very own Ken Stickle.  In 

October, Stevie Boone.  November, the month of Thanksgiving, we had Doris C. 

Brown.  And of course December Reverend William Blake Ryder.   

  

VII. MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS:  

 

1. A motion was made by Councilmember Rich and seconded by Councilmember 

Boyd to receive and print.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Before you is a Resolution extending the Acting City Administrator 

status, and I ask the City Council to please extend that status another 60 days as we 

complete the process and bring us into the New Year.  I would like to thank 

Commissioner of Finance Bunyi for undertaking those duties and responsibilities for the 

first 60 days, and I will be appointing Corporation Counsel Paul Ackermann to serve in 

the next 60 days.  Thank you Madam Chair. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  I thought, according to the Charter, we weren’t allowed to have 

Acting to have a full time position, or Department Head within the City.  In the past, we 

had Chief Knapp as Acting City Administrator, and from what I understand, according to 

the Charter, and that it was incorrect to do that. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  I don’t believe that’s accurate.  They’ve all been Department Heads to 

serve the function of “Acting.”  Corp. Counsel can back up that information. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  There are 2 separate lists of “Acting” status for City 

Administrator.  The first one is in the event of a temporary absence for the inability to 

serve; whether they are to be out of town, or for some other reason being unable to serve; 

that is off of a list that is prepared by the Mayor each January annually out of the Clerk’s 

Office.  The second is when the City Administrator no longer serves; at that point, there 

are no longer restrictions for appointment as Acting City Administrator. 

 

Councilmember Solomon:  I’ve been rereading the Charter lately, and somewhere in 

there it says that the City Manager’s position is full time, and may not be assigned other 

duties. 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  That’s correct for the City Administrator.  In the 

case now, there is an Acting City Administrator and there’s no restriction tor that.  The 

Mayor has the ability to appoint someone for 60 days, and that can continue with the 

approval of the Common Council, past those 60 days, which is the resolution before you 

is today. 

 

Councilmember Perry:  Made a motion to change the wording in the resolution, then 

withdrew it after much discussion. 

 

RESOLUTION  

(R-12-82) 
Amended (12/3/12) 

 

 

INTRODUCED BY COUNCILMEMBER RICH  

 

WHEREAS, a vacancy occurred in the office of City Administrator upon the resignation of 

Michael H. Long in October, 2012; and  

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with City Charter §3.08(b) the Mayor appointed an Acting City 

Administrator; and  

 

WHEREAS,  City Charter §3.08(b) also provides that said appointment is only effective for sixty 

days in any fiscal year unless extended by resolution of the Common Council; and  

 

WHEREAS, Mayor Tkayzik has communicated his desire to appoint Corporation Counsel Paul 

Ackermann as Acting City Administrator for a period of sixty (60) days; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Common Council deems it to be in the best interest of the City and its residents 

that an Acting City Administrator be so extended; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE,  

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the pursuant to Section 3.08(b) of the City Charter, the Mayor’s 

appointment of Corporation Counsel Paul Ackermann as Acting City Administrator is approved 

for a period of sixty (60) days from December 5, 2012 through February 5, 2013.  

 

 

SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER BOYD  

 
 



Official Minutes of the Common Council Meeting of December 3, 2012 

 

 

R12-82 

 Accepted 
 Acceptedas Amended 
 Tabled 

 

  Yes/Aye No/Nay Abstain Absent 

Councilmember Herman  Voter     

Councilmember Mallory Voter    

Councilmember Perry  Voter    

Councilmember Solomon Voter    

Councilmember Parise Voter    

Councilmember  Boyd Voter    

Councilmember Rich  Voter    

Councilmember Johnson  Voter    

     
 

 

 
 

2. A motion was made by Councilmember Rich and seconded by Councilmember 

Boyd to receive and print.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Corporation Counsel Ackermann, you drafted this Local Law 

for us.  I believe it is based on the “Boiler Plate” resolution from Schenectady, with a few 

tweaks, and it’s just something to start off with.  As we move forward we will adjust it 

accordingly to fit our City and our City’s needs. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  What’s before the Council today is simply a 

resolution introducing a proposed Local Law amending Chapter IX of the Code of 

Ordinances.  The Local Law will establish a public hearing that’s required at 5:30 p.m. on 

December 10, 2012.  Also laid on your desk is a copy of the Local Law; like you said is 

based on a sanitation collection or waste management system, in Schenectady basically 

that creates a user fee and user fund.  Whereby, the cost of sanitation will be born 

specifically by a user fee.  The user fee will be at the suggestion of the Council.  It will be 

divided up between single family, two family, three family and other units, provides for a 

collection system, definition of the terms and a penalty provision for those who don’t 

abide by the Ordinance. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  OK.  We also have the exemptions in there.  Seniors – can you 

explain that section? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  At the request of the Council, Section 9-68B there 

are two exemptions.  The first exemption is for those that will qualify for the Enhanced 

Star Program.  They will receive a reduced rate of $100 annually, as opposed to the 

normal based collection services.  The second exemption is for those eligible residents 

that have a multi-family home; say a two family or a three family.  However two of the 

units or one of the units, whatever it would be are vacant and simply live in one of the 

units, and it’s an owner occupied house.  Those are the two exemptions that are provided 

for in the Ordinance. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I also believe we incorporated a section from Newburgh, which 

is the Opt Out.  You can’t Opt Out… 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Section 9-69 of the Ordinance would require any 

waste disposal that is generated by residential properties that would be collected by the 

City of Poughkeepsie.  Thereby, not allowing other residential units to contract for 

private sanitation services. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  I’ve got a question.  On the first page, in Paragraph C, that 

“City through ad valorem levy,” is that Latin for non-taxable? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  It’s Latin for basically, your property tax.  It’s 

based not on usage and whatnot, but is based on your property tax.   

 

Councilmember Boyd:  This means that they can’t take it off their income taxes? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Basically, there are two separate issues.  Basically, 

this is just the preamble to the actual law, and what it’s saying is that the Common 

Council needs to determine that it can no longer support sanitation services through the 

normal taxation process, through the property tax and that this proportionately affects 

residents by that system of collection.  Therefore, they’re opting for a user fee.  That’s 

what the preamble says.  To answer your question, because it’s not in the property tax, it 

cannot be a fee that can be “written off” your taxes. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  The enforcement side of it is, if someone doesn’t pay their user 

fee it goes against their tax lien? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  That’s correct.  It provides for the ability to levy 

any unpaid sanitation fees against the property.  The reality of that system, similar to the 

water system would be – that, at the end of the year, when you do not pay those fees, they 

would get levied, re-levied into the next year’s property taxes.  It would be the same 

process for the sanitation. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Would there be penalties associated with that?   

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  It provides for penalties, correct.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  This is the thing.  A lot of people, since we had such a short 

span of time to come up with something, other than the Pay-as-You-Throw.  A garbage 

district, because that’s the first thing we looked into.  Do you have knowledge of a 

“garbage district?”   

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  It would be with any other district; water or sewer 

district…it takes… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  It would be time consuming...it would go to Albany…would it 

need to get a referendum? 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  It would be subject to a referendum, that’s correct.  

It would go to Albany for a municipal home, ruled legislation authorizing municipalities 

to create the district which would then be subject to a referendum. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So, that answers the question why we did not go into the route  

of a garbage district.  Would a garbage district be tax deductible?  I’m not sure. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  I can’t answer that tax question off the top of my 

head.  I don’t think it would be treated much differently than the user fee. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Well, this is the thing.  At this point, we’ll have to pay no 

matter what.  In Option A:  Elimination of Sanitation, you would have to pay a private 

hauler, which is basically around the fee that we’re proposing and this may also get 

altered, depending on how we crunch numbers with the Commissioner of Finance this 

week.  The problem with private haulers is that, unless they had a monopoly on this City, 

coming to pick up your garbage, so you would have different garbage trucks rolling up 

and down the block every day.  Once we eliminate our sanitation service and our trucks, 

then they can charge us anything they want…moving forward…anything they want.  The 

second thing:  Pay-as-You-Throw designer bags.  Councilmember Boyd, tell them about 

one of your constituents.   

 

Councilmember Boyd:  One of my constituents called and told me that she had a house 

in Sandwich, MA.  She said that they had Waste Zero, and she said there were several 

reasons why she felt…she didn’t know whether it worked or not, but she felt it was 

inconvenient for several reasons.  First, the bags were supposed to be sold at a local 

grocery store, and apparently the grocery store didn’t have them on their shelves for any 

length or period of time, so they ran out of the bags.  It was very difficult to get the 

proper bags for the taxpayers to use.  Second, the bags were too thin; when they put the 

garbage in their bags, it fell out through the bottom and she said it made an awful mess.  

She didn’t look into further to see if it really worked or not, and no longer resides there, 

but thought to let me know those situations she ran into by the city using Waste Zero. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I think also, at Waste Zero, for those that can’t afford those 

$3.00 bags, and mind you, the retail store can mark these bags up even further.  They can 

go up to $4.50 - $5.00 per bag.  Shelf space in a store is worth a lot of money.  If you 

have a product, and it’s not a popular product, your product will be on the bottom shelf. 

The ones at eye level are the ones that are really paying.  I don’t know if they’re going to 

be readily available with the supply and demand. Are those things that can force people 

to buy the bags, so those people who decide that they don’t want the bags, will continue 

to use the bags that they have and continue to dump garbage all over town.  That’s when 

we become Rat City and have to figure out how to get rid of the vermin, how do we clean 

up…it just creates a bigger problem for us.  That’s why none of the other municipalities 

went with Waste Zero. Newburgh, Schenectady and Beacon are going with the Sanitation 

User Fee, because they want to keep a clean city. 
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Councilmember Boyd:  Apparently, Newburgh had Waste Zero give their presentation, 

but Newburgh wanted to weed out and finalize the plan.  Apparently, Waste Zero never 

got back to them with a new plan or how to make the tweaks they wanted, so they felt 

that Waste Zero was not reliable regarding that. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Also, since January, I have been acting in bi-partisanship with 

this Council. I don’t know why Waste Zero approached the Executive Branch in April or 

May, we were never told about Waste Zero, that the Mayor was proposing to eliminate 

Sanitation.  Maybe early in the year, had we been told, we could’ve worked together and 

come up with a better solution that would work.  This is a better solution - The Sanitation 

User Fee is a better solution.  If we had better communication, we could have worked 

together.  We were left in suspense – October 15
th

.  We had department heads going 

through line items.  The rest of the next week, the department heads were going through 

line items.  That brought us to the end of October.  So for the whole month of November, 

if I seemed tired and tongue-tied, it’s because I have been working around the clock with 

Majority Leader Boyd and the Vice President of the Union doing a crash course in 

sanitation, finance – everything.  It’s been a job to try to save these jobs, and the rest of 

the caucus trying to come up with cuts to try to save the other 4 positions, which comes 

up to $272,000…just for those 4 positions.  It has been a big burden on us.  Remember, 

$9,000 – that’s what we get paid.  My constituent is here.  You call me on my home 

phone, you call me 24 hours a day.  I don’t have a 9 to 5 or an 8 to 4 [job].  We asked the 

Mayor for a meeting room to be able to meet with constituents, so we don’t have to go to 

their house, or meet with them on their front porch.  He vetoed our request; we overrode 

his veto, and he still did not give us a meeting room for the taxpayers.  This is your 

building.  Your taxpaying dollars pay for everything in this building.  We work for you.  

You voted for us to represent you.  We couldn’t even get a room.  Meanwhile, they broke 

down walls in this office.  Where the secretary was, I don’t know what’s going on with 

that because I see two bullet-proof doors…I think it’s empty.  They moved the meeting 

room in the middle.  I don’t know what’s going on.  There’s no Planning Department, no 

Development Department, so it’s practically empty on the second floor.  So, I don’t know 

what’s going on – it’s just unbelievable.  It’s not easy.  Well, I just thought I’d share 

some information, because people need to know. 

 

Councilmember Rich:  We haven’t voted on the resolution. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  There’s a “typo” correction that needs to be made.  It’s on page 

8, Section 9-65, unpaid waste collection fees.  I think it’s supposed to be “thirteenth”...the 

“thirteenth day of the month.”  It’s just spelled wrong and needs to be corrected. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  We have the public hearing for the Local Law, hopefully this 

week.  The Mayor will work with the Legislative Branch in making this law, tweaking it 

for our City.  Let’s put the City first.  Let’s get through this crisis, and in 2013 we can 

look into other things.  Right now, I have 17 people, who will not have a job as of 

December 31
st
, and their stomachs are turning.  I know I can’t sleep knowing I have this 

burden on me to save their jobs and their families.  In this economy, I don’t know what 
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other kind of job they’re going to get.  The reason I can relate to them is because I’m a 

homeowner, I have a husband and children.  I have a real life, so I can understand where 

they’re coming from where the head of household that’s not going to have a job and how 

it will affect their families.  That’s what we’re dealing with right now.  These men didn’t 

deserve this.  They’re hard workers.  That’s why I work around the clock.  I cannot tell 

you how tired I am. 

 

Councilmember Parise:  I would like to have a public hearing on the same day as you 

for a proposed law, amending the Mayor’s budget, introducing Waste Zero, which, I 

think is a fairer plan than you have on the table.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  You can’t include your…you have to go to Corporation 

Counsel… 

 

Councilmember Parise:  Corporation Counsel, can I do that on the floor? 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  No. 

 

Councilmember Mallory:  Right now we have something on the floor.  Take care of 

business first. 

 

Councilmember Parise:  Take care of business?! 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Let’s get the vote for the public hearing out of the way first so 

we can vote on the resolution. 

 

 
RESOLUTION INTRODUCING LOCAL LAW 

AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLIC 
NOTICE AND HEARING 

(R-12-83) 
 
 
INTRODUCTED BY COUNCILMEMBER RICH  
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that an introductory Local Law, entitled “Local Law Amending the 

Chapter 9 entitled “Garbage, Trash and Weeds”, Article 5 entitled “Solid Waste Management” of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Poughkeepsie,” be and it hereby is introduced before the 

Common Council of the City of Poughkeepsie in the County of Dutchess and State of New York; 

and 
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 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of the aforesaid proposed local law are laid 

upon the desk of each member of the Council; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council shall hold a public hearing on said 

proposed local law at City Hall, 62 Civic Center Plaza, Poughkeepsie, New York, at 5:30 o’clock 

P.M., on December 10, 2012; and  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk publish or cause to be published a public 

notice in the official newspaper of the City of Poughkeepsie of said public hearing at least five 

(5) days prior thereto. 

SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER BOYD 

 
R12-83 

 Accepted 
 Acceptedas Amended 
 Tabled 

 

  Yes/Aye No/Nay Abstain Absent 

Councilmember Herman  Voter     

Councilmember Mallory Voter    

Councilmember Perry  Voter    

Councilmember Solomon Voter    

Councilmember Parise Voter    

Councilmember  Boyd Voter    

Councilmember Rich  Voter    

Councilmember Johnson  Voter    

     
 

 

Councilmember Parise:  This question is for Corporation Counsel Ackermann and 

Acting City Administrator Ackermann.  Can I put it on the floor now, sir? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  You can make a motion to set a public hearing and 

state what your public hearing is for and get a second. 

 

Councilmember Parise:  I make a motion for public hearing on the same day as 

Councilwoman Johnson for the proposed Local Law amending the Mayor’s budget, 

introducing Waste Zero, Councilmember Herman seconded the motion.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik asked about the time for Councilmember Parise’s public hearing. 

 

 Corporation Counsel stated that both proposals can be set for the same time at 5:30 p.m. 

 

VIII. ORDINANCES AND LOCAL LAWS: 

 

NONE 
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IX. PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

Councilmember Rich made a motion that the Council be moved into Executive 

Session, Councilmember Boyd seconded the motion. 

 

Councilmember Rich made a motion to resume the meeting, Councilmember Boyd 

seconded the motion. 

 

1. FROM WAYNE FLETCHER, a notice of personal injury sustained on 

September 21, 2012. Referred to Corporation Counsel 

 

2. FROM SPENCER GREEN, a notice of personal injury sustained on August 22, 

2012. Referred to Corporation Counsel  

 

X. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  I want to know some information about the 411’s.  We 

haven’t heard.  I brought it up in Leadership and still haven’t found out what 

happened to the 411’s.  Also, I wonder why, as Common Council members, we do 

not hear of incidents that happen in our ward(s).  I had and Joe Rich had an incident 

as well and we didn’t know anything about it.  I was also wondering where in the 

budget we would have money for the River Keeper lawsuit for the dockage and the 

cement, I believe and some sort of anchorage.  I don’t know where in the budget to 

look for the line on the settlement of the suit.  Also, when we have vacant properties, 

do the banks still own them, and if so, are they still paying property taxes to the City? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Generally speaking, when a property becomes 

vacant, the people have not paid their mortgage in several months or years… 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  They have the taxes in escrow? 

 

Corporation counsel Ackermann:  Not all do.  Some banks don’t require an escrow 

account, but most of them do.  This way, they continue to pay the taxes so the 

property won’t go to lien sale.  Yet, they have no intention of moving to foreclose on 

these properties.   

 

Councilmember Boyd:  OK, so out of the 300 vacant properties, what is the 

percentage of banks still paying the taxes? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  I don’t have that information.  I know of one 

lender that has a significant number of properties; won’t pay the taxes, will have a 2 

year right of redemption, and will come in just before the property is sold at tax lien 

and pay the taxes.  So, some will use that mechanism to get caught up by taking that 2 

year window to do that.  Others will continue paying them through the escrow, so 
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they don’t lose them to tax lien.  Most of the banks don’t want to lose the property to 

tax lien, and are hoping for the market to come back to sell the property. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Out of the 300 properties, would you say that 50% are still 

paying the taxes? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  I believe that our intern is doing some cross 

referencing with tax liens vs. vacant properties, so I will ask her specifically that 

question and get you a more definite response, percentage wise. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  As you are Acting City Administrator, can you find out why 

we are not aware of incidents that are happening in our wards? 

 

Acting City Administrator Ackermann:  I will speak to the Police Chief and have 

him notify…or maybe the Mayor can explain… 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  This issue has come up before, and I have raised the issue with 

Police Chief Knapp in relation to the desk supervisors, when they are free from the 

incident to please contact myself and the City Administrator involving such events, so 

that we can, in turn, go to Council Members so that they can be made aware of the 

situation.  I know that Captain Minard was speaking with the shift supervisors, and I 

will follow up with that, because if we are not made aware when the incident settles 

down, we only get the report through an email later on and we don’t get to contact 

you.  So, I’ll follow up.  I call some of you regularly.  Normally if I get an incident, 

they call me 2 or 3 o’clock in the morning, depending on the circumstance, I, in turn, 

call the Councilperson as soon as I find out. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  I just find it’s embarrassing for us to get phone calls and we 

don’t know exactly what took place and we don’t know what to tell them 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  I hear you.  I went through that from 2004 to 2011. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  That doesn’t make it right. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  The supervisors need to be instructed to notify us so that we can 

notify you. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  What about the 411’s?  What’s the status with that?  Can 

you get us that information…you probably can’t speak out in public, but could you 

think about that? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  You got it. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  We really need to know what’s going on with that.  It’s been 

more that several months on that. 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  We’ll give you an update on that also. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  The monies for improvements to the dock and concrete are funds 

that are to be donated by Empire Cruise Lines and the Ice House.  That is the 

intention of that work to be completed for the River Keeper. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Do we have an idea of how much money that is? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Rich DuPilka is estimating the cost of the dock work to be up to 

the range to be 20 to 30.  Depending on that, the concrete work, maybe 10 – 15.  I’m 

not sure.  Don’t quote me.  I will find out from Rich, but those services are to be in-

kind contributions to the City. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Through the Ice House and through the Mystere? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Yes. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  How much was the settlement for? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  It was not a monetary settlement. 

 

 Councilmember Boyd:  It was an agreement. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  It was an agreement that the City would extend 

the dock.  We already had some sections that had been donated.  In addition to that, 

we will put additional sections, when we put in the normal docks. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  It will be extended 60 feet?  I saw what they have now.  It’s 

wrong.  There are different size lengths and widths.   

 

Councilmember Boyd:  I think those docks were donated from somebody else that 

got new docks. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  We were paid $1,500 from Knorr.  From the other cruise lines.  

This will be a temporary fix for the extension.  I spoke to Rich DuPilka and he is 

making the arrangements.  They may even be pouring the concrete for the footings 

soon, but that will be done in time for Spring. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  I think it’s April 1
st
 or May 1

st
. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  I don’t know exactly when, but it has to be 

installed when we normally install the floating dock.  
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Chairwoman Johnson:  So this is costing someone a lot of money.  The cruise line 

and the Ice House... 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Will be “in-kind” contributions to the City. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  In-kind means they are paying for it?] 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Yes.   

 

Councilmember Boyd:  …and the boat has to be moved from the dock?  

 

Councilmember Solomon:  To the Southernmost site. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Yes. 

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I would like to get a report on each ward regarding the 

scattered sidewalk repairs from Acting City Administrator Ackermann.  I got 

absolutely nothing done in my ward.  A business on Main Street, the Jamaican Pattie 

place has a big trip hazard right in front of the door.  Forget about the other work that 

I needed done.  They couldn’t even do that one.  I got one street for asphalt – I went 

to other wards and saw multiple streets that were done.  So, I would like to know 

exactly which wards and what work was done for the scattered sidewalks and repairs 

to streets with asphalt, because I got nothing done.  Now it’s too late… 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  You can’t get asphalt now anyways… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I’m talking about concrete.  It’s a problem because if it 

snows and the concrete is pours, it has to be heated and that costs more money.  What 

I want to know is where I am on the list; at the top?  Because I wasn’t on any list for 

2012.  I want to know where the work will start come Spring. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Mayor, do you know what’s happening with Mary Abdoo 

and Youth Shop?  I know she’s going out of business? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Yes, it’s very sad circumstances for the City. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Do you know if the Abdoo family is taking it over again? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  To my knowledge, she has not shared that with me.  She is just not 

renewing.  I don’t know what the landlord’s intentions are at this time…waiting to 

discuss that. 
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Chairwoman Johnson:  A lot of people tonight at the public hearing mentioned 

about going over the 2% tax cap.  So, Mayor Tkazyik, is there a reason why you 

didn’t go over the 2% tax cap and maybe if you can explain what the equivalent of 

1% is? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  I believe it’s $171,000. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Is there any special legislation you have to go through, or 

any procedure you have to go through…can you explain that? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  I believe the Council would have to have a super majority vote, 

post it to have a public hearing and a resolution if they were to go over the 2% cap 

with the final adoption of the budget.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Not us, but I’m speaking for you.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  I chose not to exceed the cap… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  No, what I’m saying is that if you decided to go over the 2% 

tax cap, is there any procedure that you had to follow? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  I would have had to present that in my budget and submit an 

overall request to the Municipal body, which is the Common Council to host a public 

hearing and to adopt a resolution to. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So it is a simple process…you don’t have to do anything 

with Albany? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  You have to file the paperwork with Albany.  The Commissioner 

of Finance needs to file [that we exceeded the cap] with Albany once it’s complete. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Is there a penalty if the Mayor or municipality goes over the 

2% tax cap imposed by the Governor? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  No.   

 

Chairwoman Johnson: No?  You just file… 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  No.  It’s a state imposed law that requires municipal body by a 2/3 

vote to exceed that, if they so choose. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Just so the public knows what the procedures are in regards 

to that.  Also, I would like say that our Chamberlain, Deanne Flynn is not here, but 

this Local Law public hearing that we just voted on that there’s a timeframe for this to 
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go into the [Poughkeepsie] Journal.  Can you explain the 5 day rule, Corporation 

Counsel? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:   It has to be 5 days notice of the Public Hearing.  

If you transmit it to the paper tomorrow for publication, hopefully by Wednesday, at 

the latest [it will be published].   

 

Chairman Johnson:  So once we submit it to the paper, that’s the end of our… 

  

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  For the public notice.   

 

Chairman Johnson: Does she need a notice for the Special Meeting on December 

10
th

?  

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Yes.  She will need to put a notice in the paper, 

on the City’s website and on the bulletin board. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson asked the Deputy Chamberlain, Amy Clunn, to make a note of 

the public hearing and the Special Meeting on December 10th.  

 

Councilmember Boyd:  There are two public hearings on that date…? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Let’s just stick to the…inaudible…they can speak for 

themselves. 

 

Councilmember Parise:  It’s not a bi-partisan issue. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I’m just trying to get the dates together here.  Do you want 

to speak?  Continued speaking to the Deputy Chamberlain:  Anyway, to put a notice 

for a Special Meeting on October [sic] 10
th

, because you [Councilmember Parise] 

weren’t going to have a Special Meeting on October [sic] 10
th

 were you? 

 

Councilmember Parise:  Yes. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  You were?  You didn’t tell me. 

 

Councilmember Parise:  I just did. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Put that in also and email me when it’s done. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  OK, so after the Special Meeting on December 10
th

 and if 

the budget or Local Law is voted on that night, Corporation Counsel Ackermann, can 

you explain what the procedure is then?  The Chamberlain gives…I forgot what she 

said. 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  The Chamberlain will submit it to the Mayor 

after the vote of the Common Counsel.  At that point, the Mayor has 10 days to act 

upon the resolution adopted by the Common Council.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Once Deanne [City Chamberlain] gives it to the Mayor, 

what does she have to do? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  She needs to certify the resolution and submit it 

to the Mayor for his action.   

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So, she has to certify the resolution and submit it to the 

Mayor a day later? 

  

Corporation Counsel Ackermann: A day or two later. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  OK.  So, she submits it on the 12
th

.  From the 12
th

, the 

countdown begins on the 13
th

?   

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Correct. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So, from the 13
th

 to December 22
nd

 is the deadline for the 

veto?   How many days is that? 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Are only business days counted?  

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman:  10 days.  You count calendar days.  All days, but 

if it falls on a Sunday, Council does not have the authority to meet on a Sunday. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  On the 24
th

, a Monday, which will be Christmas Eve.  Do 

we have to have a public notice to override a veto for Christmas Eve, the 24th? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman:  I think you’d be a little premature at this point to 

convene a special meeting. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  No, I’m asking the question, when the Mayor has until the 

22
nd

, the deadline for the veto, do we have to give notice to the public about the 

December 24
th

 meeting? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman:  Notice would have to be given, but…  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Notice would have to be given how many days in advance, 

just for a veto…? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  I’ll have to check the Administrative Code with 

regards to the number of days the notice has to be given to have that Special Meeting.  
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Chairwoman Johnson:  OK, because our regularly scheduled meeting is the 17
th

.   

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Right. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So, in actuality, can we set another Special Meeting for the 

24
th

 to override the veto on that day? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Correct. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson to Deputy Chamberlain:  Do you have all that information? 

 

Deputy Chamberlain acknowledged that she did. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson to Deputy Chamberlain Clunn:  I need for you to set - I’m 

going to remind you, too, to set a Special Meeting for December 24
th

. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  On the 17
th

. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Well, no, that’s a regular meeting… 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Just be advised that that meeting would be for 

the amended budget, or whatever vetoes to the budget.  The Local Law… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  The Local Law is a separate issue.  What were you saying 

about the Local Law? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  The Mayor has 30 days to act upon the 

resolution or an action of this body with regard to  Local Law. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So if we voted for the Local Law on December 10
th

, 

right…? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  It would bring you to January 11, 2013. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So then he has 30 days to veto to January 10
th

, 2013. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  January 11
th

. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  January 11
th

, 2013. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Depending on whether the 11
th

 falls on a 

Sunday. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  It falls on a Friday. 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Then we will have it. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  We could still go on with the amended budget…it’s just the 

Local Law that would be a 30 day veto.  If we vote on the budget on December 10
th

, 

and she certifies that resolution and the Mayor receives it on the 12
th

, then it’s a 10 

day window to veto the amended budget, then we still need you to set a Special 

Meeting for December 24th. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Right. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Can we do that in advance so that I don’t have to be 

worrying about all of this?  She [Dep. Chamberlain] will have to give notice on the 

10
th

 for the Special Meeting.  Can she also give notice for the Special Meeting on the 

24
th

 in advance? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  If the Council wants to call a meeting for the 

Special Meeting, they can call a meeting for whatever day they want to call the 

Special Meeting. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  That’s what I’m saying.  Why wait?  Just schedule it and I 

can always… 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  My reasoning is the final timeline when the 

Chamberlain submits the resolution to the Mayor. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  But we know the deadline is the 22
nd

, correct? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Correct.  It’s not saying that she’s not going to 

transmit the resolution to the Mayor on the 11
th

, whereby, you would be able to do it 

on the Friday. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  What difference would it make? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  I’m just saying, it’s totally up to the Council 

when they want to have a meeting.  You want to… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  You said that when we have the meeting on the 10
th

 and she 

has to certify it on the 11
th

, she gives it to the Mayor on the 10
th

 [sic], the countdown 

starts on the 13
th

, correct? 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Correct, but if she certifies the resolution on the 

11
th

 submits it to the Mayor… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  On the 12
th

. 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Say she does it on the 11
th

, then your 10 day 

window would end before that.  I’m just saying…you could do it now, and be done 

with it and wait... 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Yes, I would rather be done with it, and I could always 

change it.  If I have to change it until the 21
st
, I still have time to change it and cancel 

the other one, correct?  Right. 

 

Councilmember Herman:  What time would you be planning that meeting? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Early in the morning, 9:00 a.m.  Is that good for everybody 

as a tentative date?  Do you need a calendar? 

 

Councilmember Solomon:  9 o’clock on? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Christmas Eve. 

 

Councilmember Solomon:  In the morning? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Well, yeah. 

 

Councilmember Solomon:  There’s no place I’d rather be. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  So, 9:00 a.m. unless the Mayor comes back with a veto 

sooner than…hello, Mayor?  Mayor?  You know you’re going to veto, so if you can 

come with a veto, you want to be here Christmas Eve… 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Inaudible…balanced budget.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Huh? 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  I’m supporting a balanced budget. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  You know… 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  He never even heard that.  That’s not the question. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik:  Inaudible. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Our numbers aren’t short. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  He could veto it early and we don’t have to be here 

Christmas Eve.  We could come here Friday, December 21
st
.  So, he could veto 

anytime, right? 
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Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  The Mayor has 10 days to veto. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Anytime from the 12
th

; he can veto the 13
th

, the 14
th

, the 

17
th

, the 18
th

, the 19
th

, the 20
th

 or the 21
st
.  It’s up to him, but the deadline is the 22

nd
.  

That brings me to the 24
th

.  So, set the meeting, the Special Meeting for the 24
th

.  If 

the Mayor decides that he wants to give us an early Christmas gift,  and veto early, 

then I’ll cancel that and move the Special Meeting up.  Mayor?  It’s your veto.  I 

know you like to go shopping – they’ve got a lot of bargains Christmas Eve.  I don’t 

want to be here at 9 o’clock in the morning, but more than likely…think about your 

comrades.  They may not want to be here…Ackermann, Amy…they might say, 

“Really, do we have to be here Christmas Eve morning?” 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  You’ve been here New Year’s Eve morning?  There you go, 

that’s your answer.  You know what to do, right?  Okey dokey, without fail. 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

A motion was made by Chairwoman Johnson and Councilmember Boyd seconded the motion 

to adjourn the meeting at 10:03 p.m. 

 

Dated:  April 23, 2013 
 

I hereby certify that this true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Common Council Meeting 

held on Monday, December 3, 2012 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

City Chamberlain 
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COMMON COUNCIL MEETING 

Common Council Chambers 

Monday, December 3, 2012 

6:30 p.m. 

5:30 p.m. Public Hearing regarding  

proposed 2013 Budget 

6:15 p.m. Public Hearing regarding 

amendments to the Waterfront Advisory Committee 

 

I.      ROLL CALL  
 

 

IV. REVIEW OF MINUTES:   

 

 

 

V. READING OF ITEMS by the City Chamberlain of any resolutions not listed on 

the printed agenda.  
 

 

VI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  Three (3) minutes per person up to 45 minutes of 

public comment on any agenda and non-agenda items. 

 

 

 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS: 

 

 

 

VIII. CHAIRMAN’S COMMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 

 

 

 

IX. MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS: 

 

1. FROM MAYOR TKAZYIK, Resolution R12-82, extending the Acting City 

Administrator status.  

 

X. ORDINANCES AND LOCAL LAWS: 
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XI. PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

3.  FROM WAYNE FLETCHER, a notice of personal injury sustained on 

September 21, 2012.  

 

4. FROM SPENCER GREEN, a notice of personal injury sustained on August 22, 

2012.  

 

XIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

 

 

 

 

XIV. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

 

 

 

XV. ADJOURNMENT: 
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